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A. It was during the coal strike. 
Q. And they put you on the new schedule 1 
A. Yes. 
Q. Had you ever seen Mr. Nichols, to your kuowledge, be-

fore the day your train struck him 1 • 
A. No, sir. 

page 64 Q. Did you ever tell anyone before 01· after that 
accident that you had seen him before that? 

A. Before that? 
Q. Yes. 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Did you tell anybody that you liad seen him 7 
A. No, sir. 
Q. How late were you running! 
A. Between four and five hours; I don't know exactly. 
Q. Don't trains 011 this line run on schedule as passenger 

trains? 
A. Some times four or five hours late. 
Q. Was thcl'e anything unusual about this train running 

that late? 
A. No. 
Q. What makes a freight train vary its schedule 1 
A. ,v c had a dead engine in the train, and the speed was 

reduced to 24 miles an hour at Keysville, and we had to cut 
it off, and it delayed us n good deal. 

Q. Schedules vary a few hours because of handling through 
traffic? 

A. Yes, at different places. 
Q. As you approached the point where this accident oc­

curred, there is a whistle post nbout half mile of 
page 65 the crossing, isn't there 'l 

A. For this particular crossing? 
Q. No; just the whistle post t 
A. Yes. 
Q. About how far is that from the station at News Ferry? 
A. We have what is called a station hoard that is a mile 

from the station, and then we have some of these crossings, 
public crossings and whistle posts which run between quarter 
to half mile from the crossing. 

Q. There is not nny public crossing at News Ferry1 
A. No. 
Q. Is there any public crossing between News Ferry and 

where this whistle post is 1 
A. No. There is a little crossing just before you get to 
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the station going south. There is a whistle post for that cross­
ing. 

Q. Is that whistle post for freight trains or passenger 
trains! 

•A. Each. 
Q. Where is that post you .aro talking about f 
A. It is north of the pass track switch. 
Q. Put it in regard to the station. 
A. The distance Y 

Q. Yes. 
page 66} A. About 40 cars, and that would be about 2,000 

feet. · 
Q. Is the place you are talking about the whistle, on the 

News Ferrv side of the accident or the other side f 
A. The News Ferry side. 
Q. You had not gotten to that point when the accident oc­

curred 1 
A. That is right. 
Q. Is there any place at which you are supposed to blow 

your whistle before you get to tlmt private crossing? 
A. Two miles north of the crossing. 
Q. Two miles north is the only place to blow 7 
A. Yes, sir. · 
Q. Is that all? 
A. There is a plantation road. 
Q. Is there any post to blow for this crossing where this 

man was killed 7 
A. No. 
Q. Do you all usually blow for that crossing at which this 

man was· killed, if there is nobody there 7 
A. No, sir. . 
Q. As you approached this point where this accident oc­

curred, how fast was your train traveling, in your opinion 7 
A. About 45 miles. 
Q. Is that an estimate on your part? 

A. Yes. 
page 67 } Q. Have vou been operating trains long enougl1 

to make a fairly accurate estimate as to speed 7 
A. I would say yes, because the railroad officials check up 

on us about the speed. They want us to hold it to 45 miles 
an hour, and that is what we try to do. 

Q. Were you driving at any unusual speed because you 
were late this morning? 

A. No, sir. 
Q. As you approacI1ed tl1is crossing when the accident oc-
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,curred, what was the first thing that came to your atten­
:tion Y 

A. A cow 011 the crossing is the only thing I saw. 
Q. Where were you sitting as you approached this cross­

.ing ·7 
.A. On a seat in the cab provided f.or that purpose. 
Q. Were you keeping a lookout from the time you came 

.around the curve until you got to the crossing7 
A.. Yes, sir. 
(J. Did you see the cattle t 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. ·what were they doing! 
A. Running out the road to the crossing. 
Q. Did you see anybody with them? 
A. N-0, sir. 

Q. What did you do after you saw the cattle? 
page 68 } A. Blew the whistle. 

Q. \Vhat did you do after you saw the cattle! 
A. I saw the man driving them across the track. 
Q. What was he doing-walking or runningf 
A. Running. 
Q. Did he have anything in his l1and ! 
A. A stick in llis. band. 
·Q. Which way was he coming? 
A. Up the road behind the cattle. 
Q. Did you see him when he came from behind the bankY 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. ,vere you, or not, blowing the whistle when the man 

-came into view 1 
A. YP.s, sir. 
Q. You were blowing your whistle? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did your whistle continue to blow until you got to the 

-crossing? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you mnkc any statement to anyone that that train 

wai. being operated particularly fast? · 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Did this man ever stop before he went up on the track? 

A. Do you mean driving the cattle7 
page 69 ~ Q. Yes. 

A. I didn't see him if he did. 
Q. Can you estimate in yards, as best you can, how far from 

the track of your main line this man was when you first saw 
him-how many feet? 
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A. Eight or ten yards. 
Q. Was that when he first came into your view1· 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Now, did you actually see the man when he was struck'l 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Why .couldn't you see the man when he was struck? 
A. Because you can't see immediately in front of the en-

gine. · . 
Q. How far does that engine stick out in front of where 

you were sitting, do you know1 
A. I would say 30 feet from the cab window to the piloL 
Q. And that cuts off the view of anything when it comes 

right up to the track 1 · 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Then did you bave any way of being actually sure that 

the man who was killed had been struck and bad not made it 
across the track until after the accident occurred 'l 

A. No, sir. 
Q. Now, as you were there at that window1 which 

page 70 ~ hand did you use to sound the whistle 1 
A. I always used the left hand. 

Q. Did you make a loud blast! . 
A. Yes, sir,. several of them. 
Q. Did you ever apply your emergency brakes before you 

got to that crossing? 
A. No, sir. 
Q. When you were blowing your whistle and that man 

was coming towards the crossing, did you or . not think he 
was going ahead before he stepped up on the track? 
· A. I thought he would stop. He was driving the cattle 

across, and I thought he was going to stop. 
Q. In your opinion, approximately, how far do yon think 

you were still from that crossing when this man came into 
your view1 

A. The first time I saw him 1 
Q. When you saw the man yourself f 
A. Around 200 feet. 
Q. At that point the end of the engine would have been 

170 feet from where the crossing was 7 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That would be approximately 170 feet? 
.A. Approximately that. 
Q. Is the track approximately straight there where you 

were then? 
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page 71 ~ A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Is it almost level T 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Is there a slight grade? · 
A. I think there might be a little, but very, very little. 
Q. How much did your train have on-how many cars 7 
A. 25. 
Q. Were they loaded? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Considering the type of track you were on and the 

nature of that trnin, in your opinion if you had applied your 
brakes as f!Uickly as you could after you first saw this man, 
could you have appreciably slowed the speed of your train 
before you got to that crossing1 

A. I don't think so. 
Q. If an engine is going at, say, 45 miles an holl1\ and you 

threw it in emergency, approximately how far would it take 
to actually stop the train? 

A. There arc different trains and the different manner in 
which the brakes are applied, makes a difference. I would say 
just a little short of c1uarter of a mile would be a good esti­
mate. 

Q. Is slowing a train down a different proposition from 
running an automobile, or not 7 

page 72 ~ A. Yes, sir. 
Q. ,vho else was up in the engine with you 1 

A. Mr. Ellington. 
Q. ,vhat is he on the train 1 
A. He is a fireman. 
Q. Is he the only other person who rides up in the cab 1 
A. Yes, sir, on that morning. 
Q. w· ere you the only ones that could see on the track 

ahead? 
A. That is right; the side from which the cattle came. 
Q. And he was on which side7 
A. The left. 
Q. You sat looking out the right and he the left? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. \Vhere was the brakeman 1 
A. In a cab on the back of the water tank. 
Q. Was the rest of the crew back in the caboose or back 

end of the train i 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. \Vere they in position that they could sec anything up 

front? 
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A. No, sir, they couldn't see. 
Q. In other words, they couldn't see from the 

page 73 ~ back end of the train 7 
A. No, sir. 

Q. Mr. Rowlett, have you carefully observed this crossing 
as you have been back and forth up this line? 

A. Yes, sir, and I have noticed it more more carefully than 
I would after this accident. 

Q. Did you go back yesterday and observe it carefully? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you measure the distance from the main rail to that 

gate7 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. How much is it 7 
A. 37 feet, to be exact. 
Q. Do you know how far it is from that crossing clown to 

Mrs. Farmer's house? 
A. We counted the rail lengths in there yesterday, and it 

is around 80 rail lengths, and they run around, I think 30 or 
34 feet. , 

Q. Eightly and about 33 feet to the rail 1 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That would be about 2,640 feet from where the accident 

occurred to her house? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. "When you came up on tliat crossing, did you have any 

way of knowing before this man came into view, 
page 74 ~ that Mr. N!chols would be there? 

A. No, sn·. 
Q. Now, you said you were blowing your whistle wit11 your 

left hand from the time you saw the cows until the time you 
got on the crossing? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Which hand would you use to apply the brake7 
A. The left hand to apply the brakes and blow the whistle. 
Q. Sitting there, where is your whistle cord 1 
A. Sitting like that, your whistle cord is here (illustrat-

ing). 
Q. They are both on your left-·hund side'! 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. ·when young l\fr. Nichols came to t~1e crossing, did he 

say whether or not he had heard the trnm? 
A. He said he had heard a whistle early that morning 

around six o'clock. 
Q. Now, I wish to ask you this: Did you blow your whistle 
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:any mol'e that morn_ing after you passed that crossing? Do 
you remember whether you did, or not Y • 

A. I did not blow it any more that morning. 
Q. After you passed the place where the man was killed¥ 

A. Yes. I bad to blow the whistle when I got 
page 7 4 ~ ready to leave to c~ll in the flagman. 

Q. You did toot your whistle then 7 
A. Yes. 
Q. Was it the same type of whistle you were blowing up 

nt the crossing Y 
A. Yes. It is different from the crossing; two longs and 

two shorts. 
Q. That was dowq. near the station Y 
A. Yes. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Bv l\lr. Easlev: 
·Q. I unders"tand from you that that whistle was only blown 

once around the time of this accident't 
A. No, I didn't say that. 
Q. What did you say? 
A .. I said I blew the whistle when the cattle came on the 

track and several blows of the whistle after that. 
Q. What did you do that timet 
A. That is exactly what I said. I blew the whistle con-

tinuously. · 
Q. How many times did you blow the whistle before yon 

struck l\fr. Nichols? 
A. I couldn't tell vou exactlv. We made several 

page. 76 ~ blasts of the whistle because of the cattle. 
Q. You testified to the jury you were giving 

blasts of the whistle all the time? 
A. Until the time they got across. 
Q. You were giving short blasts of tl1e whistle all the way 

down the track from the time you first saw the cows until 
you passed the cows; is that right? 

A. Yes. 
Q. You didn't blow that whistle any more until you called 

in the flagman? 
A. No. 
Q. How long before you called in the flagman! 
A. I think we were there about an hour. 



52 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 

G. S. Rowlett. 

Q. So that one blast you gave on the whistle was that blast: 
you gave as you came down aoross.that crossing7 

A. Yes. 
Q. Can you tell us how many yon blew? 
A. We always give attention to cattle and people on the 

track. 
Q. You were on the right side of the train t 
A. Yes. 
Q. Isn't it a fact that when your emergency brake is ap­

plied the brakes get all the pressure on the airline side 7 
A. ·we apply it once for the service. You mak~ 

page 77 } an emergency application and a service applica­
tion. 

Q. The first emergency application gives it all the power 
on the wl1eels? 

A. Yes, sir. It takes seconds to do it. It docsn 't do it 
simultaneously. 

Q. · How many seconds 1 I am speaking of the fact when 
you grab the emergency brake, when you pull the emergency 
lever, you check the train, don't you 7 

A. In a very short distance. It will not do it instantly. 
Q. I understand Mrs. Morgan Farmer has testified that 

you told her yon would not have known that you hit the man 
but the fireman told you 1 

A. I didn't know that he was hit until the fireman tola 
me. 

Q. I want to know whether you admit or deny that you 
told Mrs. Farmer yon didn't know you hit a man until the 
fireman told you 7 

Mr. Bagwell: The witness has no way of knowing whether 
he was bit. He admits it now. 

By Mr. Easley: · · 
Q. I ask whether you admit or deny you told Mrs. Morgan 

Farmer that you didn't even know you had hit a man until 
the fireman told you 7 

A. I don't remember I told anybody that. 
page 78 ~ Q. You deny you told her tbatt 

A. Yes. 
Q. All right. And you also deny you .told her that you 

should be in Danville and .yon were running very fast t 
A. I deny telling anyone that. 
Q. You tell tl10 jury wl1en these cows came out of the gate 

-how many were there 7 
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A. I don't know. I didn't count them. 
Q. And isn't it a fact that tl1ree of the cows had gotten 

across the track and you ran them in the pasture¥ 
A. I don't remember that. 
Q. Isn't it a fact that two of them hadn't gotten across the 

trackf 
A. I didn't count them, and I d01~ 't know how many. 
Q. But you tell the jury you saw the first cow that came 

on the track as soon as it came into your sight? 
A. I snw them run for the track. 
Q. And you saw :Mr. Nichols running all the cows Y 
A. Yes. 
Q. And you thought he was going to stop? 
A. I thought the man was going to stop f 
Q. You saw him chasing the cows across the track, and he 

continued to run, and you thought he was going to stop, until 
you hit him; is that correct Y 

page 79 ~ A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You didn't apply the brakes until you got to 

the crossing; is that right 1 
A. Yes, sir. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Bagwell: 
·Q. After Mr. Nichols came into your view, <lid tl1e accident 

occur quickly and very suddenly? 
A. Yes, sir. 

G. R. ELLINGTON, 
a. witness on behalf of the defendant, was first duly sworn, 
and testified as follows: 

Examined by Mr. Bagwell: · 
Q. You are 1fr. G. R. Ellington, the fireman on this train? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That struck and killed Mr. Nichols back in .June, arc 

you not? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. How old are you 't 
A. 50. 
Q. Wl1ere do you live? 

A. Richmond. 
page 80 ~ Q. How long ltave you b~en working on the rail­

road? 
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A. 32 years. 
Q. Are you also qualified as an engineer r 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. As you were procedeing f tom Richmond to Danville, 

Virginia, on the morning that this accident occurred, yon were 
traveling late, were you f 

A. Yes, sir. We left Richmond late. 
Q. Is it anything unusual about a freight train running as 

you did, running lated 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Do they generally run on an exact schedule like a passen-

ger train t _ 
A. No, sir. 
Q. As you all approached this crossing, how fast do you 

think you all were traveling? 
A. I think we were running· around 40 miles an hour-40 

to 45 miles an hour. 
Q. Is that your usual operating speed¥ 
A. Yes, sir, that is the usual speed along in that terri­

tory. 
Q. Do you all customarily blow for that little private cross­

ing there'l 
A. No, sir. 

Q. Is there any crossing there at News Ferry to 
page 81 ~ blow for? 

A. Down at the station, about two miles-about 
the 25 mile post. 

Q. You blow for the station? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. But there is no station crossing? 
A. No, sir. 
Q. ·why do you blow for the station! 
A. All trains qlow for station, you understand. 
Q. So that people know that the train is coming? 
A.. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Easley: ·wait a minute. 
I 

By Mr. Bagwell: 
Q. ,Vhat were you doing as you approached the point of ac­

cidentt 
A. Sitting on the left side looking ahead. 
Q. ,vhen you are on the left side, do you have any view on 

the right side 7 
A. No, sir. 
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Q. :fi·oes th"<! engine pto'ject O'Ut ahead ttf' vdti? 
A. Yes, sir, about 30 feet or mor"e'. · 
Q. Did you see Mr. Nich_ols before he came up on the t"ail­

totid track at all J 
page 82 } A. No, sir. .. . . 

Q'. Vi us· it possible fo'r y·ou to sM him before he 
<!ame up on. the railroad track? 

A. No, sir, not whel'e I. was. 
Q. ·when did you first se·e himY 
A. After the eiig-i'-ne struck hiiii, lie c·aine off 011 the ieft-

lmnd side. 
Q. ,vas t,1at tl1e first you knew that he had oceu hit, 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did the engineer blow his whfstie,. or not, as you came 

up on fhc crossingt 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Do you know how far baek fro~ the imp~ct it was? 
A. I can't say exactly, but approximately 12~ or i50 feet. 
Q. Did you sec any cattle about to cross the track before 

the man was hit~ 
A. Yes, sir; two or three cows. 
Q. Did they go across there how long before he was l1~t f 
A. I don't know,. but it was pretty close to tlrnt crossing 

before I saw the cows. 
Q. Do you know whether that whistle continued to blow 

up to the time you got to the crossing.? 
A. Pretty close lip to the crossing. 

page 83 } Q. Now, Mr. Ellington', did you talk to :Mrs. 
Farmer a-ny that morning7 

A. Yes, sir. I didn't know whO' Mrs. Farmer was at tllat 
time, but I rcmembe1· ta,lking to an elderly lady. 

Q. Where was she? . 
A. Down a path which leads from her porch. She c~me 

down to see and was talking to· the dispatcher, and she hol­
lered and asked what was wrong, and I said we killed a man. 

Q. Then you are the one who talked to hed 
A. Yes, sir. . 
Q. Do you remember whether or not yon told her you were 

running late? 
A. Yes; sl10 said you are supposed to come before four 

o'clock, and I said we were late. 
Q. Do you remember telling ber you were going at an un­

usual rate of speed? 
A. ,vc were not going u:nusually fast at all. 



56 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 

G. R .. Ellington. 

Q. ,v ere you there when this young Nichols boy, Mr-­
Nichols' boy, came down 1 

A. Yes. 
Q. Did he make any statement whether he heard the train 

blow¥ 
A. Yes, sir. He said he heard the train blow up, 

page 84 ~ at the house. 
Q. Have you noticed this crossing rather care-

fully since this accident occurred Y · 
A. Yes, sh·, we do., several times in the day. 
Q. Did you go up there yesterday? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. If a man is standing at the little gate, how far up the­

track can you see if you look carefully Y 
A. A good ways down, standing at the gate like we were· 

yesterday, you could barely see the top of his head if you. 
knew he was there. 

Q. About how far would it beY 
A. Several hundred feet. 
Q. How far from the trackY 
A. He would be up at the gate. If he came out, you could 

see him a co~ple of hundred feet from the gate, if you knew 
he was standmg there. 

· Q. Do you know the distance from this crossing down to 
the station Y 

A. I can't say how far it is now. I don't know just how 
far it is. Possibly a little over a mile, or maybe more. 

Q. Do you know about how far it is from the crossing down 
to l\Irs. Farmer's house'l 

A. I don't know just how far that is. I guess a 
page 85 ~ little over a mile clown there. 

Q. These estimates yon are giving are purely 
estimates on your part 7 

A. Yes, sir. I don't know just how far it is. I can't say. 
Q. Yon and Mr. Rowlett, the engineer, were the only ones 

up at the front end of this train who could see what was 
going on up there 7 

A. Yes, sir. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Easley: 
· Q. You told tl1e engineer that a man had been killed Y 

A. I told him tlrnt 110 lmd struck a man. 
Q. And he then applied the brakes 7 
A. Yes, sir. · 
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Q. Up to that time he hncl not applied the brakes1 
A. No~ sir. . , 
Q. The whistle post for the station is some distance beyond , 

the crossing? 
A. The station whistle, ye~., 
Q. About half mile enst of the crossing, isn't it, or approxi-

ma telv something like that? · 
A. Yes, sir. 

· Q. The crossing is about half-wav between the 
page 86 ~ station whistle :mcl, the station Y • . 

A. Approximntely. 
Q. Diel you all blow for the station 1 
A. I don't know wl1ethcr he did, or not, on that occasion, 

but he blew for that crossing. 
Q. ·which crossing? 
A. The crossing where the cows were running. 
Q. He blew for that crossing? 
A. He was blowing at the time. , 
Q. He clidn 't blow the stn tion whistle 1 
A. On Q freight-train it is not necessary to blow for each 

station. You do that on pnssengers trains but not freight 
trains. 

Q. There ai:-e two of those cros_sings near each other be-
tween the station whistle post and the station, are there not7 

A. Do you mean with refer1mce to that little crossing? 
Q. 1:es. . . .. 
A. Yes, there was one at 1\lr. Nichols and one further clown. 
Q. You never saw l\fr. Nichols until he was struck? 
A. That is 1ight. 
Q. Diel you see the <·ows 1 . 

A. I was pretty close to the crossing before the 
page Bi ~ cows ran over on my side. 

Q. Anq you sny there were two or three of tliern 7 
A. I saw two or three. 
Q. You .don't recall whetltet· there was any left on the 

other side} . 
A. No, I don't know whHther there was, or not. 
Q; No\\', that track there is,practically level or downgraile7 
A. It may be slig·htly on the downgrade. It looks pretty 

level. 
Q. ,vhat makes you thinl, you were going only 45 miles an 

hour¥ 
A. That is a judgment of speed. I wouldn't say positively 

45, and I wouldn't sav 50 or 40. 
Q. When you all were talking to Mrs. Farmer, didn't the 
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engineer make the statement to her that the train was late! 
A. I have never seen him talking to Mrs. Farmer. "\Ve 

were talking to the dispatcher. 

page 88 ~ R. L. HUDSON, 
a witness on behalf of the defendant, was first duly 

sworn, and testified as follows: 

Exami~ed by Mr. Bagwell: 
Q. You are Mr. R. L. Hudson! 
A. Yes,, sir. 
Q. And how old are you T 
A. 51 years. 
Q. Where do you live 7 

· A. Richmond. 
Q. "\Vhat work do you do 7 
A. Brakeman. 
Q. ,vith the Southern Railway Company? 
A. Yes., sir. 
Q. How long have you been working for the Southern Rail­

way Y 
A. 28 years. 
Q. How long have you been on tl1is line from Richmond to 

Danville? 
A. For some years. 
Q. Were you riding on this train back in .Tune when they 

struck and killed Mr. Nichols? 
A. Yes~ sir. 
Q. Where were you riding 7 
A. Out on top of the tank, over the end of the water tank. 

We call it the dog house, better known as brake­
page 89 ~ man's cab. 

Q. Explain to the jury as near as you can where 
it is. 

A. It is up behind the pilot in t11e center of the tank, and 
has a running board about this l1igh on each side for the 
fireman to walk on, and sometimes there is coal up to the 
top of it. I can only see out to the side, and there is a doqr 
to the rear. 

Q. You were sitting pretty close to the engine? I mean 
you were at the same end of tl1e train as the enp;i11e? 

A. I am between the box ear and t\1e engfoe. The tank car 
is between the box car and the engine. 

Q. ,vi1ere you were sitting, was it possible to see up in 
front? 
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.A. No, sir. 
Q. Where could you see? 
A. On the -side and to the rear. '\Ve hav.e some glass about 

:S to 10 in the back, and some on the side. 
Q. As you approached this intersection, or this little cross­

ing where the accident occurred, you were facing which way­
to the front or to the rearV 

A. To the rear. 
Q. And all you coul<l see was to the rear 1 
A. Yes., sir. 

Q. Could you see anything as to what happened 
page 90 } off at the side¥ 

A. No, sir. 
Q. Did you, or not, l1ear a whistle blown as you got close to 

the crossing? 
A. I heard him blow~ and the next thing he applied the 

brakes. . 
Q. Did you know until after he stopped that there had been 

a man struck there f 
A. No, sir, I didn't. 
Q. Can you estimate as best you can how fast the train 

was running as it approached the crossing? 
A. The best I could estimate was around 45 miles an hour. 
Q. "'\Vas the train ('oming at an unusual rate of speed, or at 

'its usual rate of speed? 
A. At its usual speed. I didn't notice anytl1ing unusual 

about it. 
Q. At the crossing where this man was killed, what kind 

of crossing is it 1 
A. A small crossing and Mr. Nicl1ols used it for carrying 

cattle across and hauling wood. 
Q. Was it made just for the convenience of Mr. Nichols Y 
A. I guess so. It could not have been made for anybody 

else. 
page 91 } Q. Is it what is known as a private crossing? 

A. Y cs, sir; it looked like it was. 

(No cross examination.) 

Mr. Bagwell: Your Honor, it is twenty minutes to one, and ' 
it may be we will have no further evidence to offer. 

The Court: Come back at twenty minutes to two. 
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James C. Foster. 

AFTERNOON SESSION. 

Halifax, Virginia; November 26, i94K 

The Court met at the expiration of tho recess. 

Present: Same parties as hereto noted • 

. J Ai\IES C. FOSTER, . . 
a witness on behalf of the defendant, was- first duly sworn,, 
and testified as follows: 

Examlned by Mr. Bagwell: 
Q. You are James C. Fosteri 
A. Yes~ sir. 
Q. Where do you live 7 
A. Pace . 

. . Q. Do I uilderstand at tlie time of .the acci4ent tp Mr:. 
Nichols you were employed as section foreman by the South­

ern Railway Companyt 
page 92 ~ A. Yes, sir. . . . . 

Q. Are you employed at all by the Southern Rail­
way Compai1y mnv Y 

A. No, sir~ . . . . . 
Q. At that time how long had you been section foreinnn 

for the Southern. Railway Compttny Y 
A. I had been there five years. . 

. Q. Diel you patrol the right~of-way from News Ferry 0111 
through South Boston for a few miles 1 

4. I.came all tl1e way to South Boston. . 
Q. There has been some mention. made _apout. a whistle 

board behv.eert the pointof this.accident and the News terry 
station; is there any such whist.le board there Y 

A. No. 
Q. \Vas it there at the time the ac-eident took piacef 
A. No, sir. . . 
Q. About how far from the station Y 
A. I should say 1,500 feet. . . , . 
Q. Was that whistle board there at the time of the acci-

dent! . 
A. No, sir.. . 
Q. It has. been tnken down 1 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. '\Vl1at was that whistle board therefor1 
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Jam<is C. Foster. 

page 93 ~ A. This board protected that crossing at the sta,. 
tion, and when they did away with the crossing, 

and they never did take that out. · 
Q. How long has that crossing been done away with? 
A. I couldn't say. I came there in 1930, and it was not 

there. 
Q. In other words, the whistle board was there near the 

station, and it was removed before the accident 1 
A. Yes~ sir. 
Q. As you go on back towards South ~oston, where is the 

next whistle board! 
A. A mile from the stntion. 
Q. Is that on the other side of the station¥ 
A. Yes., sir. 
Q. And n mile from the station 1 
A. Yes., sir. 
Q. ·what is that whistle board forY 
A. For passenger trains and local freights. 
Q. ·what was it for? 
A. To blow for approaching the station. 
Q .. ,v as it for through freights 1 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Was this a through freight Y 
A. Yes., sir. 

Q. And passenger trains and through freights 
page 94 ~ blew for that f 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Is -that the only whistle board anywhere at all in the 

vicinity of this crossing where this man was killed? 
A. Yes., sir. 
Q. Are you very familiar with tl1is crossing where the man 

was killed1 
A. Ye~., sir. 
Q. Do you know where Mr. J.B. Nichols' home isY 
A. Yes., sir. 
Q. How far is his home from that place? 
A. About a mile. . 
Q. Were you familiar with this crossing at the time of the 

accident? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Are you familiar with it nowT 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Is it in the same condition now as when he was-struck? 
A. Yes, sir. 

__ , __ _ 
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James C. Jiloster. 

page 95 ~ CROSS E~AMINA'lHON. 

By Mr. Easley: 
Q. You didn't have anything to do with the ope1~atio'Q of 

that train? 
A. No. 
Q. And don't know anything about tbe order of maintain­

ing it? 
A. I have a rule book covering all of that? 
Q. Does tne rule book say it is only for through freights 

and passenger trains 'i 
A. No. 
Q. It doesn't· specify one way or the other 1 
A. No. 
Q. There are two private crossings between the whistle 

post and the house, are there not? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. One above anp one below'i 
A. Yes, sir. 

page 96 ~ By the Court: 
Q. Do you know how many trains pass over this 

crossing a day? 
A. The regular timed trains in the day. with ol!,e to four 

passengers trains and a short one going each way. 
Q. How about at night 1 
A. They have two freights and two night passenger trains. 
Q. And how many of those through trains are there a day? 
A. Two. 

By Mr. Easley: 
Q. The through freights were the ones that went in the 

night¥ 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And the daytime trains were all local trains and blew 

for the station? 
A. That was the way then. 

Mr. Bagwell: "'Te rest. 
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page 97} MRS. MORGAN FARMER, 
recall~d on behalf of t4~ plai~tfff, in rebuttal, tes-

tified as follows : · 

~xamine~ by M1?. Ensley : 
Q. lfrs. Farmer, it has been testified ~ere that yo~ were 

down there at the switch right afte1: the accidenU · 
A. No, I didn't go to t4e sw~tch. 
Q. ,vhere did you see those people you had conversEJ,tion 

with? 
A. One man came up to the house. 
Q. Up to your house1 

, A. Yes, to the back door: 
Q. The engineer ha~ testified. that before ho reac4ed this 

crossing he began to give a series of short bla~ts on the 
~hi~tle, and that that was the only blast 'made during that 
period; is that correcU 

Mr: :Jlagwep: I object to that. She testified to that. 
Mr. Ea~ley: At th~t time the statement had not been made 

by the engineer. 
The Court: She testified exactly what tl~e engineer testi­

fied to. Go a!iead. 

A. I didn't say tlmt. The only whistle I heard was after 
the engineer cut the train and came up to the house. · 

page 98 } By the Court: 
Q. Dic'J, the eng}~e ever cut lqose 7 

A. The engine left the train down the track. 

By Mr. Easley: 
Q. He drove the traip down to the station and came up to 

your house 1 · 
A. Yes, sir. 

By Mr. Bagwell: 
Q. He blew! 
A. I heard tl1e short one. 
Q. l\frs; Farmer, speaking about the switch: Your house 

is right next to the switch, isn't it? 
A. Not the switch board, but down lower nearer the sta­

tion. 
Q. That is near your house, isn't iU 
A. Yes, sir. · 
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Mrs. lJforgan Farmer. 

By Mr. Easley: 
Q. I understand the whistle· you heard blow-

Mr. Bagwell: I object to that. She is here for rebuttal. 
Mr. Easley: I wanted to know if the time she heard the 

whistle blow was immediately before this man came to the 
house? 

·witness: Yes~ sir. He 'backed the engine up, and he came 
to the door. 

page 99 ~ · End of Evidence. 

The Court: Do you want the jury to have a view 'f 
Mr. Bagwell: I think it is a good idea. 
Mr. Ensley: If you will let the sheriff go along. 
The Court: Gentlemen, you have this case in charge; don't 

discuss the case with anybody or among yourselves; counsel 
have asked for you to have a view. It is agreed that the Court 
will not accompany you; the Sheriff will go along with you. 
Mr. Gosney will show you the place wl1P.re the accident hap~ 
pened. Do not _talk to Mr. Gosney, or anybody, about the 
case, but go and see the place, and you will remember what 
the evidence is. After you have had a view of the premises 
then come back to the court house. 

Mr. Bagwell: We were at a conference back tllerc, and it 
was agreed that a view should be had not in the presence of 
the Court. · 

I renew my motion to strike the plaintiff's evidence on the 
grounds previously state, since there has been no evidence 
of negligence on our part, nnd sinc.e the negligence of the 
plaintiff is a matter of law. 

The Court: The motion is overruled. 
:Mr. Bagwell: I except. 

page 100 ~ INSTRUCTIONS. 

Mr. Bagwell: Counsel for the defendant excepts to the ac­
tion of the Court in granting any instruction for the plaintiff 
upon the same ground that he has stated in support of his 
motion to strike the evidence, there being no evidence of neg­
ligence on which a verdict could be based; and it appearing­
from the evidence that the plaintiff's intestate was guilty of 
negligence as a matter of law. 
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Plaintiff's Instruction. No. 1 (Granted.): 

"The Court instructs the jury that it was the duty of the 
engineer and fireman in charge of the defendant's locomotive 
on approaching the crossing in question in this case to use 
reasonable care in the operation of said train and to keep a 
reasonable lookout for people using the said crossing, and the 
amount of care required wus commensurate with the condi­
tions surrounding the cros8ing and the speed of the train as 
it approached the same, and if the jury believe from the evi­
dence that said engineer aml fireman failed to use such rea­
sonable care, then they arc guilty of negligence." 

Plaintiff's Jnsfructfon No. 2 (Granled): 

'' The Court instructs the jury that it was the duty of the 
engineer and fireman in charge of the defendant's 

page 101 ~ trnin to exercise reasonable care in the operation 
of the said train and to keep a reasonable lookout 

for plaintitl''s decedent, .J. B. Nichols in the use of the cross­
ing., and failure to exercise such reasonable care would con­
stitute negligence on the pa rt of the defendant; and the Court 
further tells the jury that it was the duty of said plaintiff's 
decedent, J. B. Nichols, to u:-:c reasonable care to look for the 
approach of defendant's trnin at said crossing and not to 
enter the smnc in the face of an approaching train, and tlmt. if 
the said J. B. Nichols failed to exercise such reasonable eare 
and went on the crossing iu front of said approaching train 
when he either saw or by the exercise of reasonable care 
should have seen the npproaehing train, then he was guilty of 
contributory negligence; but the Court further tells the jury 
that even though they nm~· believe that the plaintiff's de­
cedent, J. B. Nichols, was guilty of negligence in going upon 
the crossing·, yet if the dot'ernlnnt's employees in charge of thP. 
said train either saw the :-;aid .J. B. Nichols approaching the 
crossing, or b~· the exercise of reasonable care should have 
seen him appronching t11e crossing under cii·cumstances which 
would have indicated to n reasonably prudent man that he 
was not conscious of tl1e train 's approach and would cross 
the same in front of the trnin, then it bocame and was the duty 

of the employees in charge of said train to use 
page 102 ~ rensonable care to avoid the injury by giving 

warning of the npproach of the train or by stop­
ping the same, or by slowing the same down to avoid the 
collision, and if the jiH"y believe that the said employees did 
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see the said Nichols, or by the exercise of reasonable care 
should have seen him under such circumstances and in time 
to avoid the collision and failed to use reasonable care to 
av6id the injury to him, and that sucl1 failure was the proxi­
mate cause of the accident resulting in decedent's death, then 
they must find for the plaintiff.'' 

l\Ir. Bagwell: Counsel for the defendant particularly ob­
jects to the action of the Court in granting Instruction No. 2 
offered by the plaintiff for the following reasons: 

This instruction instructs the jury upon the doctrine of the 
last clear chance, and in this case there is no evidence upon 
which a recovery could be made under the doctrine of the 
last clear chance, as it is clearly shown from the evidence that 
the defendant railway company did not have any last clear 
chance to avoid the accident; that tlle gross and culpable neg­
ligence of the plaintiff's intestate continued up to the very 
moment that he was struck and that the accident occurred so 

suddenly after the decedent came in view of the 
page 103 ~ engineer, t~at there was no possibility of subse-

quent negligence on the part of the defendant 
company. Further objection to tlrnt instruction is that it is 
so lengthy and so intri,qate that it is confusing to the jury 
and does not adequately state the cloetrine of the last clear 
chance. 

Pla,intiff"'s lttstrn.ction, No. 3 (Gran.fed): 

"The Court instructs the jury that if they believe from 
the evidence that the plaintiff is entitled to recover, in esti­
mating the damages the jury should find the sum with refer­
ence to, 

"First: To the pecuniary loss of the widow, at a sum equal 
to the probable earnings of the deceased, considering his 
age, business, capacity, experience, lmbits, energy, and per­
severance during his probable life. 

"Third. They may consider the loss of his care, attention, 
and society to his widow and children. 

"Fourth. They may add such sum ns they deem fair and 
just by way of solace and comfort to his widow for the sor­
row, suffering, and mental anguish occasioned by his death, 
provided they do not find over fifteen thousand dollars." 
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.DefendQlnt's Instruction .A. (Gra,nted as amended): 

"The Court instructs the jury that under the evidence in 
this case, J. B. Nichols was guilty of negligence 

page 104 ~ when he attempted to cross the defendant's rail-
1·oad tracks in front of the oncoming train, and 

if such negligence was a proximate cause of the accident in 
question then the plaintiff cannot recover regardless of 
whether tlie defendant's employees were negligent or not, 
ienless the defcndm1t had the last clea,r chance to avoid the 
-accident.'' 

Mr. Bagwell: Counsel for the defendant excepts to the 
-action of the Court in refusing Instruction A as offered, and 
in adding ''unless t110 defendant had the last clear chance 
to avoid the accident", because there is no evidence of such 
last clear chance . 

.Defendant's In.druction B (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jury to be on tl1eir guard against 
feelings of sympathy, compassion and charity, and that such 
-sympathy, compassion and charity should not influence their 
verdict in this case but that sucl1 verdict must be in accord 
with the law and evidence as presented." 

Defendant 7s Instruction C (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jury that negligence cannot be 
lnferred or presumed from the mere happening of the acci­
-dent in question, but the burden is upon tl1e plaintiff to prove 
by a clear preponderance of the evidence that the defend­
ant railwav company or its agents were negligent in the 

· manner alleged in the notice of motion, and that 
page 105 } such negligence was the direct and proximate 

cuuse of the death of J. B. Nicl1ols, and if the 
preponderance of the evidence does not establish such negli­
gence, then the plnintiff is not entitled to recover." 

Defendant's Instruction D (Grmlfed): 

"The Court instructs the jury that as the deceased ap­
proached the crossing in question, it was his duty to loolr and 
listen for an approaching train, and if there was any obstruc-
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tion formed by the bank near the right of. way, then it was 
his duty to continue to look and listen for the train until he 
reached a point beyond the bank at which he could see and 
hear the train; and if there was a train approaching, it was. 
his duty not to enter onto or attempt to cross the tracks w1til 
such entry or crossing could be made in safety." 

Defendamt's fostmctioi1, E (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jury that it is not the duty of the· 
engineer of a railroad train to attempt to stop the train when 
he sees a person approaching the tracks.. He has a right to· 
assume that the person will stop and not go upon the tracks 
in front of a moving train in plain view, and unless there is 
something to show the engineer that the person approaching 
is not going to stop, the engineer owes no du.ty to stop the 
train.'' 

page 106 ~ Defendant's Instruction F' (Granted as a.nie11ded): 

'' The Court instructs the jury that the only duty which 
the defendant or its agents owed to the deceased as its train 
approached the private crossing in question, was to exercise 
reasonable care in the operation of its train. By reasonable 
care is meant the exercise of such care as a reasonably pru­
dent person would exercise under the same or similar cir­
cumstances. And unless the plaintiff proves hy a pr~ponder­
ance of the evidence that the defendant or its employees 
failed to exercise such care, then the plaintiff is not entitled 
to recover in this case. 

"However, even if the jury should believe from the evi­
dence that the defendant or its employees failed to observe 
such care, nevertheless if the deceased, J. B. Nichols, was 
also g'Uilty of negligence whicl1 contribu.ted to Ule accident 
in question, then tlie plaintiff is not entitled to recover in 
this case, w,iless the jury believes the defendant had the last 
clear clwmce to a·void the injury." 

Mr. Bagwell: Counsel for the defendant objects to tlie re­
fusal of the Court to grant Instruction F as offered and to 
adding. "unless tbe jury believe the defendant had the last 
clear chance to avoid the injury" for the reason that there 
was no evidence of such last clear chance. 
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page 107 ~ Defenda;nt's Instruction G (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jury that the railroad tracks of 
the defendantls company at the crossing in question were 
themselves a signal of danger to the deceased as he ap­
proached, and if the said deceased was familiar with the 
crossing in question, then tbe more dangerous the crossing 
appeared, the more caution he was required to exercise in 
attempting to cross it.'' 

Defenda11t's Instruction II (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jt:.ry that the ·defendant company 
was not required to give the signals 'for the crossing at the 
place where tlle accident oceun·ed which are required for 
public crossings, s~nce the accident in question was not at a 
public crossing but at a private crossing." 

Def en-dant 's I,u;truction I ( Oran.ted) : 

"The Court instructs the jury that the law recognizes the 
fact that the nerves and muscles of men are not so coordinated 
that there can be instantaneous action to meet an emergency; 
nnd if you believe from the evidence that the deceased ran 
onto the tracks in front of the defendant's train suddenly, 
you cannot find for the plaintiff, unless you believe that the 

plaintiff has proved by the preponderance of the 
page 108 ~ evidence that in contemplation of the entire situa-

tion after the danger to the deceased became 
known to the defendant's cmployoos, or which should have 
been discovered by them, by the exercise of ordinary care, 
they, the saicl employees, negligei;itly failed to do something 
which tihcy had a lost elem· chance to do to avoid the acci­
dent." 

Defendant's fostructio11 J (Refused): 

HThe Court instructs the jury that if the deceased, J. B. 
Nichols, had the last chance to avoid the accident in 
question by the exer-eise of reasonable care on bis part, and 
failed to do so, then the plaintiff cannot recover in this case." 

Mr. Bagwell: Counsel for the defendant excepts to the ac­
tion of tl1e Court in uefnsing to grant Instruction J for the 
reason that this instruction adequately and cormctly tells 
the law of the case. 
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Defendant's Instruction K (Granted): 

"The Court instructs the jury that the instruction which 
has been given identified as #2 is based upon what is known 
as the Doctrine of the Last Clear Chance; and the plaintiff is 
not entitled to recover under this theory if J. B. Nichols and 
the. defendant's employees were guilty of concurring negli-

gence which was so closely connected in point of 
page 109 ~ time as not to have afforded said employees the 

last clear chance to have avoided the accident in 
question.'' 

page 110 ~ After hearing the argument of counsel, the jury 
retired to their room to consult of a verdict, and, 

afte1· some time, came into court and rendered the following 
verdict, to-wit: · 

"We, the jury find for the plaintiff :Mrs. Utila Guthrie 
Nichols, Admx. of J. B. Nichols, on her notice of motion and 
fix her damages at seven thousand five hundred ($7,500.00) 
dollars. 

F. W. SIZEMORE, Foreman.'' 

The defendant, by counsel, moved the Court to set aside 
the aforesaid verdict of the jury and enter up judgment for 
the defendant notwithstanding the verdict of the jury on the 
following grounds: (1) The Court should sustain 'the defend­
ant's motion to strike the plaintiff's evidence at the con­
clusion of the plaintiff's evidence and at the conclusion of all 
the evidence. (2) The Verdict was contrary to· the law and 
the evidence and without evidence to support it; (3) That the 
plaintiff's intestate was guilty of contributory negligence as 
a matter of law which bars recovery. (4) That no negligence 
was proven on the part of the defendant's employees. ( 5) 
That the plaintiff's intestate was guilty of contributory neg­
ligence as a matter of law and the evidence docs not prove 
that the defendant's employees lrncl a last clear chance to 

avoid the accident. If the above motion is over­
page 111 } rules, the defendant moves the Court to Bet aside 

the aforesaid verdict of the jurr and grant it a 
new trial on the following grounds, viz: (1) That the verdict 
of the jury is contrary to the law and the evidence, with no 
evidence to support it. (2) That the Court erred in grant­
ing instructions Nos. 2 and 3 offered by the plaintiff for 1·ea­
sons stated at the time the instructions were objected to. (3) 
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That the Court erred in amending tlle defendant's instructions 
to include the last clear chance doctrine. ( 4) The Court erred 
in refusing to grant instruction No. J offered by the defend­
.ant, for the reasons stated at the time it was refused. ( 5) 
That the Court erred in admitting certain testimony offered 
by the plaintiff and objected to by the defendant and par­
ticularlv evidence as to the statement testified to have been 
made by the defendant's servants after the accident. And 
the Court not being advised of its judgment will hear argu­
ment for and against said motions to set aside the verdict 
·of the jury on Friday, December 6, 1946. 

On Friday December 6, 1946: 

This day came again tl10 parties by their attorneys and 
the court hearing the argument of counsel on the defendant's 
motion to set aside the verdict of the jury on the grounds 

heretofore stated, and after personally inspecting 
page 112 } the scene of the accident; the Court doth sustain 

said motion and doth set aside the verdict of the 
jury rendered November 26, 1946, and doth find ancl enter 
judgment for the said Southern Railway Company; and doth 
consider that the said defendant recover ·against the said 
plaintiff its costs by it about its suit in this behalf expended. 
Which judgment of the Court the plaintiff by counsel ex­
cepted and is given 60 days in which to perfect his appeal to 
this judgment. 

page 113} .JUDGE'S CERTIFICATE. 

I, G. E. Mitchell, Jr., Judge of the Circuit Court of Hali­
fax County, Virginia, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
is a true and correct transcript of the testimony and proceed­
ings in the case of Utila Guthrie Nichols, Administratrix of . 
J. B. Nichols, v. Southern Railway Company, tried in said 
court on the 26th day of November, 1946, and includes all the 
testimony offered, the motions and objections of the part~s, 
the rulings of the court, and the exceptions of the parties, and 
all other proceedings of said trial. 

I further certify that the exhibits offered in evidence. as 
<lcscribcd by the foregoing record, and designated as Plain­
tiff's Exhibits No. 1 (Plat), Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, and Defendant's 
Exhibits Nos. A., B, C, D, E, F, arc all of the exhibits offered 
upon said trial, and the originals thereof have been initialed 
by me for the purpose of identification. 

I further certify that said transcript was presented to me 
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for identification within 60 days after the final order in said 
cause, and that the attorneys for the defendant had reason­
able notice in writing of the time and place at which the same 

should be tendered for certification. 
page 114 ·~ Given under my hand this 1st day of February,. 

1947. 

G. E. MITCHELL, J~., Judge. 

A Copy Teste: 

E. C. LACY, Clerk. 

page 115 ~ CLERK'S CERTIFICATE. 

I, E. C. Lacy, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Halifax County,. 
Virginia, do hereby certify that the foregoing transcript of 
testimony and other proceedings in the trial of the case of 
Utila Guthrie Nichols, Administratrix of ,T. B. Nichols, De­
ceased, v. Southern Railway Company, a corporation, duly 
certified by the Judge of tlle said court, together with the 
original exhibits. introduced upon the trial of said case, iden­
tified by the initials of said judge, was filed in my office on 
the 1st day of February, 1947. 

E. C. LACY, Clerk. 

Fee $10.00. 

A Copy-Teste: 

l\L B. '\V ATTS, C. C. 
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